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doseph C. Perry Dear Mr. Terrell:

William Ross

Clinton R. Shaw, Jr.

Tl This office has completed its investigation of the above-referenced
Senior Staff At matters. We find that your conduct reflected a disregard of certain ethical
SCNIr Allormey . . . .

Lawrence K. Bloom standards under the District of Columbia Rules of Professional Conduct. We
oo therefore are issuing you this Informal Admonition pursuant to D.C. Bar Rule

XI, §§ 3, 6, and 8.

Manager, Forensic Investigations
Charles M. Anderson

i P s In October 2011, lhc_: client-complainant retained you to represent him in

Kevin E. O'Connell an employment discrimination matter, and paid you a fee of $2,500. In February
2012, you filed a civil complaint on behalf of the client in federal court. It was
not until January 2014, however, that you provided the client a retainer
agreement. By that time, the parties had begun settlement negotiations and your
client disputed your entitlement to a contingency fee. The client stated that you
had never advised him you would charge a contingency fee, but rather told him
you would seek additional attorney’s fees from the defendants.

When you sent the client a retainer agreement in January 2014 setting
forth a one-third contingency fee, the client would not sign the agreement and
did not agree to its terms. The client eventually settled with the defendants, but
your claim for additional fees became an issue in the settlement negotiations.
Several days after the parties agreed to a settlement, you filed a motion to
withdraw as counsel and a notice of charging lien. Your client then filed a
complaint with Disciplinary Counsel. Approximately a week after your client
filed his complaint, he and you reached an agreement as to the fees you would
be paid from the settlement.
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Rule 1.5(b) provides that:

When the lawyer has not regularly represented the client, the basis or rate of
the fee, the scope of the lawyer’s representation, and the expenses for which
the client will be responsible shall be communicated to the client, in writing,
before or within a reasonable time after commencing the representation.

Rule 1.5(¢) further provides that a contingency fee must be in writing, and must state the
method by which the fee is to be determined, including the percentage or percentages that will
accrue to the lawyer in the event of a settlement, trial or appeal, and the expenses to be deducted
from the recovery and whether they will be deducted before or after the contingent fee is
calculated. A written statement concerning the fee furnished in advance or promptly upon
commencing the representation “reduces the possibility of misunderstanding.” Comment [2].

Your failure to provide the client a writing setting forth the basis or rate of your contingent
fee, and the scop= of your representation, violated Rules 1.5(b) and (c). Had you provided the
client the requirec writing and done so at the outset of the representation, you could have avoided
the dispute over your entitlement to additional fees from the client and the amount of those fees.

In deciding to issue you an Informal Admonition, we have considered that the fee you
ultimately agreed to receive was substantially less than the contingency fee you sought and you
have no prior discipline.

This letter constitutes an Informal Admonition pursuant to D.C. Bar Rule XI, §§ 3, 6, and
8, and is public when issued. Please refer to the attachment to this letter of Informal Admonition
for a statement of its effect and your right to have it vacated and have a formal hearing before a
hearing committes.

If you wouild like to have a formal hearing, you must submit a written request for a hearing
to the Office of Disciplinary Counsel, with a copy to the Board on Professional Responsibility,
within 14 days of the date of this letter, unless Disciplinary Counsel grants an extension of time.
If a hearing is requested, this Informal Admonition will be vacated, and Disciplinary Counsel will
institute formal charges pursuant to D.C. Bar Rule XI, § 8(c). The case will then be assigned to a
Hearing Committee, and a hearing will be scheduled by the Executive Attorney for the Board on
Professional Responsibility pursuant to D.C. Bar Rule XI, § 8(d). Such a hearing could result in
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a recommendation to dismiss the charges against you or a recommendation for a finding of
culpability, in which case the sanction recommended by the Hearing Committee is not limited to
an Informal Admonition.

Sincerely,

Wallace E. SHipp 4T
Disciplinary Coufisel

Enclosure:  Attachment to Letter of Informal Admonition
cc (w/o Encl.): Client-Complainant
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